

Section 70 Grant
Payments In
accordance with:
Transport (Scotland)
Act 2001 Section 70(4)
Financial Year 2023-24
SG/2024/80

Contents

Accessibility Policy	3
Air Services - Air Discount Scheme	3
Air Services - Subsidised Air Services	3
Clyde and Hebrides Ferry Services	4
Concessionary Travel	4
Cycling, Walking and Safer Routes	5
Harbour Grants Resource	8
Hydrogen Train Project	8
Local Rail Development Fund (LRDF)	8
Low Carbon (Capital)	9
Low Emission Zones	. 11
MaaS Investment Funds	. 14
Northern Isles Ferry Services	. 14
Regional Transport Partnerships Core & Additional Revenue Expenditure	. 14
Scottish Ultra Low Emission Bus Scheme	. 15
Strathclyde Partnership for Transport Capital Projects	. 16
Support for Bus Services	. 16
Support for Internal Ferry Services	. 16
Sustainable & Active Travel	. 17
Sustainable Travel - Smarter Choices Smarter Places	. 23
Tay Road Bridge	. 24
Transport Information	. 24
Transport Policy	. 24
Vessels, Piers and Harbours	. 25

Accessibility Policy

Grant Recipient	Durbaca at Grant	Total 2023/24
Disability Equality Scotland	Grant to support accessible transport for disabled people	91,372.00

Accessibility Policy Total: 91,372.00

Air Services - Air Discount Scheme

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Loganair Limited	Subsidy designed to tackle the problem of high air fares in the most peripheral parts of the Highlands and Islands	12,947,728.21
Western Isles Island Games Association	Subsidy designed to tackle the problem of high air fares in the most peripheral parts of the Highlands and Islands	40,068.64

Air Services - Air Discount Scheme Total: 12,987,796.85

Air Services - Subsidised Air Services

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Dundee City Council	For the provision of Public Service Obligation (PSO) Air Services to airports in the Highlands and Islands	1,049,750.00
Highland Council	For the provision of Public Service Obligation (PSO) Air Services to airports in the Highlands and Islands	1,000,000.00
Loganair Limited	For the provision of Public Service Obligation (PSO) Air Services to airports in the Highlands and Islands	6,460,789.29

Air Services - Subsidised Air Services Total: 8,510,539.29

Clyde and Hebrides Ferry Services

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
CalMac Ferries Limited	Deficit Grant in connection with the Clyde and Hebrides Ferry Services contract	232,043,856.89

Clyde and Hebrides Ferry Services Total: 232,043,856.89

Concessionary Travel

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
CalMac Ferries Limited	Payments made to ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Ferry Concessionary Travel Scheme for Older & Disabled People	169,739.95
CalMac Ferries Limited	Payments made to bus, rail and ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Concessionary Travel Scheme for Young People	13,999.90
John O'Groats Ferries Limited	Payments made to ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Ferry Concessionary Travel Scheme for Older & Disabled People	234.00
Pentland Ferries Limited	Payments made to ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Ferry Concessionary Travel Scheme for Older & Disabled People	45,950.00
Pentland Ferries Limited	Payments made to bus, rail and ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Concessionary Travel Scheme for Young People	2,585.24
Serco Limited	Payments made to ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Ferry Concessionary Travel Scheme for Older & Disabled People	997,093.45
Serco Limited	Payments made to bus, rail and ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Concessionary Travel Scheme for Young People	89,498.24

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Transport Scotland Bus Operators	Payments made to bus, rail and ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Concessionary Travel Scheme for Young People	1,519.70
Transport Scotland Rail Operators	Payments made to bus, rail and ferry operators to fund the Scotland Wide Concessionary Travel Scheme for Young People	517,242.00
Improvement Service	Grant funding for costs associated with NEC card production, online applications and identity verification for the Young Persons Free Bus Scheme	1,123,400.00
Transport Scotland Bus Operators, authorities operating as back offices and service providers and awarded Mobility as a Service (MaaS) Pilots	Payments to reimburse additional costs arising due to the installation/upgrade of Electronic Ticketing Machinery through the Smart Pay Grant Fund, and development of digital MaaS platforms	57,083.05

Concessionary Travel Total: 3,018,345.53

Cycling, Walking and Safer Routes

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Aberdeen City Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,453,000.00
Aberdeenshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,954,819.90
Angus Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	922,134.79
Argyll and Bute Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	619,186.45
City of Edinburgh Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	3,363,000.32

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Clackmannanshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	320,909.59
Comhairle Nan Eilean Siar	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	234,471.01
Dumfries and Galloway Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	947,078.46
Dundee City Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,105,919.56
East Ayrshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,253,000.00
East Dunbartonshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	989,185.10
East Lothian Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	700,000.00
East Renfrewshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,125,000.00
Falkirk Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,020,280.44
Fife Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	4,029,000.00
Glasgow City Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	4,881,550.19
Highland Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,520,000.00
Inverclyde Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	398,063.54

Section 70 Grant Payments In accordance with: Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 Section 70(4) Financial Year 2023-24

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Midlothian Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	608,395.33
Moray Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	616,000.00
North Ayrshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,446,994.78
North Lanarkshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	2,180,000.00
Orkney Islands Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	239,649.00
Perth and Kinross Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,758,000.00
Renfrewshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	2,008,000.00
Scottish Borders Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,547,000.00
Shetland Islands Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	88,744.73
South Ayrshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,148,936.70
South Lanarkshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	3,465,000.00
Stirling Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,010,000.00
West Dunbartonshire Council	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	388,186.86

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
	Grant for Local Authority cycling, walking and safer streets projects including safer routes to school	1,987,000.00

Cycling, Walking and Safer Routes Total: 45,328,506.75

Harbour Grants Resource

Grant Recipient	Durnoco of Grant	Total 2023/24
	Grant to support the creation of Scottish maritime policy and strategy	25,000.00

Harbour Grants Resource Total: 25,000.00

Hydrogen Train Project

	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
University of St Andrews	Funding for design, installation and demonstration of hydrogen fuel cell power	28,485.22

Hydrogen Train Project Total: 28,485.22

Local Rail Development Fund (LRDF)

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
East Lothian Council	To provide money for communities to carry out a multi-modal transport appraisal to develop proposals for improvements to rail connections in their areas	25,000.00
Highlands & Islands Transport Partnership, The (HITRANS)	To provide money for communities to carry out a multi-modal transport appraisal to develop proposals for improvements to rail connections in their areas	85,000.00
South-East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)	To provide money for communities to carry out a multi-modal transport appraisal to	41,157.00

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
	develop proposals for improvements to rail connections in their areas	
StARLink - The St Andrews Rail Link Campaign	To provide money for communities to carry out a multi-modal transport appraisal to develop proposals for improvements to rail connections in their areas	105,999.60
Tayside & Central Scotland Transport Partnership (TACTRAN)	To provide money for communities to carry out a multi-modal transport appraisal to develop proposals for improvements to rail connections in their areas	91,998.50

Local Rail Development Fund Total: 349,155.10

Low Carbon (Capital)

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Aberdeen City Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	54,029.79
Aberdeenshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	122,938.09
Angus Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	166,628.40
Argyll and Bute Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	57,452.04
City of Edinburgh Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	124,694.70
Clackmannanshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	53,163.04
Comhairle Nan Eilean Siar	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	144,936.89
Dumfries and Galloway Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	116,572.07
Dundee and Angus College	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	368,123.03
Dundee City Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	159,842.47
East Ayrshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	197,607.05

Section 70 Grant Payments In accordance with: Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 Section 70(4) Financial Year 2023-24

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
East Dunbartonshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	113,747.90
East Lothian Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	236,045.28
East Renfrewshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	45,034.85
Ember Core Limited	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	2,983,740.48
Falkirk Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	226,359.87
Fife Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	178,689.22
Fife Scottish Omnibuses T/A Stagecoach East Scotland	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	909,888.00
Glasgow City Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	328,250.50
Heriot-Watt University	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	119,643.72
Highland Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	1,050,784.72
Houstons Mini Coaches	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	683.00
Inverclyde Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	74,517.42
Midlothian Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	90,867.63
Moray Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	97,776.22
North Ayrshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	268,504.01
North Lanarkshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	250,221.27
Orkney Islands Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	77,003.63
Perth and Kinross Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	46,052.94
Renfrewshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	122,466.69

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Scottish Borders Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	43,609.28
Scottish Water	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	1,212,937.25
Shetland Islands Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	88,633.82
Shuttle Buses Limited	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	160,000.00
South Ayrshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	33,000.00
South Lanarkshire Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	342,596.93
Stagecoach North - Highland Country Buses	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	99,999.75
Stagecoach Services Limited	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	65,076.00
Stirling Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	115,608.97
University of St Andrews	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	394,971.59
University of Strathclyde	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	165,934.31
West Lothian Council	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	69,813.90
Western Buses T/A Stagecoach West Scotland	To promote sustainable and low carbon initiatives	1,364,832.00

Low Carbon (Capital) Total: 12,943,278.72

Low Emission Zones

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	227,302.01
	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	525,245.22

Section 70 Grant Payments In accordance with: Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 Section 70(4) Financial Year 2023-24

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Angus Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	248,606.13
Argyll and Bute Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	230,000.00
Bodyshop Edinburgh Limited trading as Coach Hire Edinburgh	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	57,000.00
City of Edinburgh Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	803,662.00
Clackmannanshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	75,952.83
Coast to Coast Travel Limited	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	38,000.00
Craig of Campbeltown Limited trading as Borders Buses	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	11,200.00
Dumfries and Galloway Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	11,953.44
Dumfries and Galloway Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	141,753.11
Dundee City Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	198,902.00
East Ayrshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	469,321.00
East Lothian Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	196,000.00
East Renfrewshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	121,272.00
Falkirk Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	154,703.95
Fife Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	700,157.00
GD Coaches	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	19,000.00
Glasgow City Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	957,417.66
GMT Travel Limited trading as Westway Coaches	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	19,000.00
Golden Eagle Coaches Limited	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	38,000.00

Section 70 Grant Payments In accordance with: Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 Section 70(4) Financial Year 2023-24

Transport Scotland

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Highland Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	793,234.47
Inverclyde Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	107,683.99
Lothian Buses Limited	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	96,425.00
Low Carbon Vehicle Partnership	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	226,532.10
MacPhails Coaches Limited	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	19,000.00
Midlothian Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	265,162.43
Moffat & Williamson Limited	BEAR Retrofit Phase 5 scheme	95,000.00
Moray Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	149,691.00
North Ayrshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	258,431.29
North Lanarkshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	375,655.69
Orkney Islands Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	61,997.00
Renfrewshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	681,763.11
Scottish Borders Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	813,684.00
Scottish Police Authority	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	166,631.00
Shetland Islands Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	37,033.88
South Ayrshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	24,984.96
South Lanarkshire Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	440,323.11
West Lothian Council	Grant claim for Public Transport Provision Funding	58,423.74

Low Emission Zones Total: 9,916,105.12

MaaS Investment Funds

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
University of St Andrews	Associated pilot costs of MaaS Investment Funds	234,746.57

MaaS Investment Funds Total: 234,746.57

Northern Isles Ferry Services

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Serco Limited	Deficit Grant and leasing cost in connection with the Northern Isles Ferry Services contract	57,666,938.32

Northern Isles Ferry Services Total: 57,666,938.32

Regional Transport Partnerships Core & Additional Revenue Expenditure

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
South West of Scotland Transport Partnership (SWESTRANS)	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	259,250.00
South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	782,000.00
Highlands and Islands Transport Partnership (HITRANS)	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	522,750.00
North East of Scotland Transport Partnership (NESTRANS)	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	782,000.00
Shetland's Transport Partnership (ZETTRANS)	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	131,750.00

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Strathclyde Partnership for Transport	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	649,500.00
Tayside & Central Scotland Transport Partnership (TACTRAN)	To contribute towards RTP running costs and the implementation of the Regional Transport Strategy	522,750.00

Regional Transport Partnerships Core & Additional Revenue Expenditure Total: 3,650,000.00

Scottish Ultra Low Emission Bus Scheme

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Aberdeen City Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	4,844,759.84
Argyll and Bute Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	18,183.00
City of Edinburgh Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	571,832.70
Dundee City Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	238,931.53
East Ayrshire Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	26,159.70
Falkirk Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	151,130.23
Fife Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	97,510.17
Glasgow City Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	464,229.95
Highland Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	1,177,312.41
Midlothian Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	137,552.67
West Lothian Council	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	107,681.91

Scottish Ultra Low Emission Bus Scheme Total: 7,835,284.11

Strathclyde Partnership for Transport Capital Projects

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Strathclyde Partnership for Transport	To contribute towards capital projects delivered by Strathclyde Partnership for Transport	44,785,000.00

Strathclyde Partnership for Transport Capital Projects Total: 44,785,000.00

Support for Bus Services

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Transport Scotland Bus Operators	Contribution to purchase environmentally friendly buses	412,397.83

Support for Bus Services Total: 412,397.83

Support for Internal Ferry Services

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Argyll and Bute Council	Grant for Public Sector internal ferry services	2,146,000.00
Highland Council	Grant for Public Sector internal ferry services	1,897,000.00
Orkney Islands Council	Grant for Public Sector internal ferry services	15,829,000.00
Shetland Islands Council	Grant for Public Sector internal ferry services	23,082,000.00

Support for Internal Ferry Services Total: 42,954,000.00

Sustainable & Active Travel

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Aberdeen City Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	65,229.00
Aberdeenshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	43,434.20
AECOM Limited	Funding to provide professional support to the Active Travel Transformation Project	30,040.56
Angus Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	58,000.00
Argyll and Bute Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	79,988.47
Bike for Good	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	532,478.00
City of Edinburgh Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	134,151.00
City of Edinburgh Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	3,506,815.88
Clackmannanshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	29,751.00
Clackmannanshire Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	1,759,998.96
Climate Group	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	44,400.00
Comhairle Nan Eilean Siar	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	58,440.02

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Comhairle Nan Eilean Siar	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	266,291.57
CoMoUK Trust	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	75,670.89
CoMoUK Trust	Support for car clubs, offering low carbon, flexible use vehicles with potential to integrate into wider mobility systems	23,808.68
Cycling Scotland	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	8,590,000.00
Cycling UK	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	813,113.00
Cyclist's Touring Club (CTC) t/a Cycling UK	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	3,098,137.00
Dumfries and Galloway Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	90,903.90
Dumfries and Galloway Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	286,468.00
Dundee City Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	45,591.45
East Ayrshire Council	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	214,087.28
East Ayrshire Leisure	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	231,606.26
East Dunbartonshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	40,245.18

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
East Dunbartonshire Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	200,000.00
East Lothian Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	53,598.96
East Renfrewshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	80,000.00
East Renfrewshire Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	805,147.63
Energy Savings Trust	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	243,736.73
Falkirk Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	95,716.75
Fife Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	31,050.00
Forth Environment Link	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	9,520.00
Glasgow City Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	70,105.00
Glasgow City Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	1,247,590.42
Glasgow City Council	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	180,000.00
Highland Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	64,231.14

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Highland Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	481,437.93
Highlands & Islands Transport Partnership, The (HITRANS)	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	1,989,018.00
Huntly & District Development Trust	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	99,962.70
Inverclyde Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	68,106.66
Inverclyde Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	90,860.22
Isle of Gigha Heritage Trust	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	39,063.39
Living Streets Scotland	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	740,745.00
Lochaber Environmental Group	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	5,405.90
Midlothian Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	52,008.88
Moray Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	65,204.82
Moray Council	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	132,651.77
North Ayrshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	75,495.00
North Ayrshire Council	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	270,002.18
North East of Scotland Transport Partnership (NESTRANS)	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	1,285,190.71

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
North Lanarkshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	79,089.22
North Lanarkshire Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	1,230,000.22
Orkney Islands Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	52,625.00
Orkney Islands Council	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	6,147.47
Paths for All Partnership	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	17,436,438.00
Perth and Kinross Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	30,000.00
Perth and Kinross Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	48,169.55
Renfrewshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	98,411.00
Renfrewshire Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	2,075,551.85
ScotRail Trains Limited	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	1,680,806.55
Scottish Borders Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	49,783.00
Scottish Borders Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	562,028.67
Scottish Cycling	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active	146,518.56

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
	Travel through the access to bikes programme	
Scottish Cyclists' Union t/a Scottish Cycling	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	834,360.59
Shetland Islands Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	38,653.11
Shetland Islands Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	181,343.54
South Ayrshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	75,602.44
South Lanarkshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	112,926.00
South West of Scotland Transport Partnership (SWESTRANS)	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	236,970.00
South-East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	1,251,748.29
South-East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	11,840.83
St Paul's Youth Forum	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	135,428.09
Stirling Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	52,527.54
Stirling Council	Grant funding in connection with work undertaken on the National Cycle Network and active travel projects including the school run	360,836.47

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Strathclyde Partnership for Transport	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	1,640,067.26
Sustrans Scotland	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	32,175,786.00
Tayside & Central Scotland Transport Partnership (TACTRAN)	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	699,250.00
The Bike Station	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel through the access to bikes programme	639,685.00
The Climate Group	Transport Scotland match funding to ERDF projects	45,650.00
West Dunbartonshire Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	19,696.72
West Lothian Council	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	75,629.31
Zettrans (Shetland Islands Council)	Contributing to the Active Travel Vision and Cycling Framework for Active Travel	627,111.75

Sustainable & Active Travel Total: 91,305,182.12

Sustainable Travel - Smarter Choices Smarter Places

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Paths for All Partnership	Grant funding for sustainable travel demonstration project "Smarter Choices Smarter Place", including Monitoring and evaluation	964,880.00
Tayside & Central Scotland Transport Partnership (TACTRAN)	Grant funding for sustainable travel demonstration project "Smarter Choices	72,139.00

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
	Smarter Place", including Monitoring and evaluation	

Sustainable Travel - Smarter Choices Smarter Places Total: 1,037,019.00

Tay Road Bridge

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board	To fund capital expenditure on operating and maintaining the bridge	6,441,289.90
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board	To fund revenue expenditure on operating and maintaining the bridge	1,721,784.20

Tay Road Bridge Total: 8,163,074.10

Transport Information

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Traveline Scotland Limited	To manage, maintain and improve the systems and software for web based and smartphone applications for journey planning and travel information purposes and to facilitate the Traffic Customer Care Line	446,099.85

Transport Information Total: 446,099.85

Transport Policy

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Comhairle Nan Eilean Siar	Grant for 20 mph strategy road assessment	144,069.35

Transport Policy Total: 144,069.35

Vessels, Piers and Harbours

Grant Recipient	Purpose of Grant	Total 2023/24
Ardrossan Harbour Company Limited	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	140,573.81
Associated British Ports	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	47,286.07
Caledonian Maritime Assets Limited	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	5,900,000.00
Caledonian Maritime Assets Limited	Grant for embedded assets relating to vessel resilience	13,500,000.00
CalMac Ferries Limited	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	64,694.82
CalMac Ferries Limited	Grant for embedded assets relating to vessel resilience	12,478,998.18
Comhairle Nan Eilean Siar	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	5,525,475.92
Highland Council Harbours	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	2,144,335.00
Highland Council	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	12,951,403.00
Orkney Ferries Limited	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	10,087.32
Outer Hebrides Tourism	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	8,700.00
Serco Limited	Grant for embedded assets relating to vessel resilience	1,589,025.00
Skye Connect	Contribution for piers and harbours projects	3,927.71

Vessels, Piers and Harbours Total: 54,364,506.83

Grand Total: 638,240,759.55



© Crown copyright 2024

You may re-use this information (excluding logos and images) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence or e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk

Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

Further copies of this document are available, on request, in audio and visual formats and in community languages. Any enquiries regarding this document / publication should be sent to us at info@transport.gov.scot

This document is also available on the Transport Scotland website: www.transport.gov.scot

Published by Transport Scotland, June 2024

Follow us:





transport.gov.scot